
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

 
 

  City Council Workshop & Meeting   
  June 7, 2021 

   Agenda 
                                                                                                               
 

 
5:30 P.M.  City Council Workshop 

A. Public Artwork – Sabrina Best (15 minutes) 
B. Proposed Amendment to the Appointment Process – Sue Clements-Dallaire (10 minutes) 
C. Proposed Fund Balance Policy Amendment – Jill Eastman (10 minutes) 
D. Comp Plan Update (Rec/Open Space) Eric Cousens (15 minutes) 
E. Festival Plaza Update – Derek Boulanger & Consultant (40 minutes)  

 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting - Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Boss 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items - All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member or a citizen so requests, in 
which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on 
the Agenda.  

 
1. Order 64-06072021* 

Appointing Wardens and Ward Clerks for the June 8, 2021 Election. 
 

2. Order 65-06072021* 
Initiating a formal request to forward the draft Comprehensive Plan Recreation and Open Space Chapter 
to the Planning Board for a recommendation. 
 

3. Order 66-06072021* 
Initiating a formal request to forward a proposed draft ordinance change allowing auto sales in the 
General Business II district to the Planning Board for a recommendation. 
 

1. Order 67-06072021* 
Approving the Annual Reports to the Maine State Housing Authority for Tax Year April 1, 2020 – March 
31, 2021, Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing Districts, #16 (Webster School), #20 (62 Sprint 
Street), #21 (477 Minot Ave) and #22 (48 Hampshire Street). 
 

II. Minutes – May 17, 2021 Regular Council Meeting 
 

 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

• Summer Activities – Sabrina Best 

• Covid Vaccinations Update – Chief Robert Chase  

• Council Communications (about and to the community) 
 
IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 

to City business or any item that does not appear on the agenda.   
                  

V. Unfinished Business  
 
4. Order 57-05172021 

Approving the Special Amusement Permit and Liquor License for The 1800 Club located at 34 Court 
Street.  

 
VI. New Business  

 
2. Public hearing – Community Development Block Grant and Home Funds Action Plans for 2021-2022 

 
VII. Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related 

to City business or any item that does not appear on the agenda 
 

VIII. Reports (from sub-committees to Council) 
a. Mayor’s Report  
b. City Councilors’ Reports  
c. City Manager Report 

 
IX. Executive Session – Economic development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Sec. 405 (6)(C) 
 
X. Adjournment 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021 
 
Author:  Sabrina Best, Recreation Director & Rebecca Swanson Conrad, Public Art Workgroup    
 

Subject:  Public Art – French Beauty  
 
Information:  Charlie Hewitt has approached the City of Auburn and Public Art Workgroup about donating a 

piece called “French Beauty” to Anniversary Park. Mr. Hewitt would handle all aspects of design, creation, 
and installation of the piece with the assistance from NeoKraft Signs. The Public Art Workgroup is 
recommending the City approves this proposal. If approved installation and unveiling would occur by Fall 
2021.    
 

City Budgetary Impacts:  Annual electricity bill (the piece would be luminated with LED lights).  
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Approve the proposal for “French Beauty” in Anniversary Park.  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None  
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:    
 

Attachments:  
Proposed design of the piece  
Proposed Location in Anniversary Park  
 

 





S

E

C

O

N

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

B

R

O

A

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

+

5

0

S

E

C

O

N

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

L

P

H

A

S

E

 

1

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

 

L

O

T

C

O

N

S

T

R

U

C

T

I

O

N

 

BL

R5

R6

R8

R7

R4

P2

19

7

16

7

3

0

3

1

+

7

9

.

8

2

5

1

5

2

5

3

5

4

55

5

6

5

7

+

6

1

.

5

2

7

16

PROPOSED

LANDSCAPED AREA

REMOVE FENCE, FILL AND

LEVEL AREA WITH

GRANULAR BACKFILL &

PLACE 4" LOAM AND SEED

60' CIP CONCRETE

SEAT WALL

PROPOSED UNIT PAVER

PLAZA AREA (TYP)

44' CIP

CONCRETE

SEATWALL

PROPOSED GRASS STRIP

6" LOAM AND SEED

16

7

225' CIP

CONCRETE

SEAT WALL

RIVERW
AY

R
IVER

W
AY

C
O

N
STR

U
C

TIO
N

 B

L

16

7

99' CIP CONCRETE

SEAT WALL

P1

G1

G2

G3

G4

R1

R2

R3

G5

G6

G7

G8

G9

G10

G

R

E

E

N

W

A

Y

 

T

R

A

I

L

1

0

1

1

2

0

+

6

7

1

1

0

1

1

1

1
1
2

1

1

3

1

1

4

1

1

5

1

1

6

1

1

6

+

1

4

.

1

7

R9

R10

R11

P3

P
B

PROPOSED ELECTRICAL

SERVICE BOX CONNECT

TO POWER POLE

PROPOSED

PULL BOX (TYP.)

PB

PB
PB

10

6

1-

1

2

" LIGHTING CONDUIT (TYP.)

(SEE SHEET 8)

PROPOSED ROADWAY

LIGHT FIXTURE (TYP.)

PROPOSED PARKING LOT

LIGHT FIXTURE (TYP.)

PROPOSED

PEDESTRIAN LIGHT

FIXTURE (TYP.)

STUB LIGHTING

CONDUIT FOR

FUTURE CONNECTION

STUB LIGHTING

CONDUIT FOR

FUTURE CONNECTION

PROPOSED BARRIER

BOULDER (TYP.)

4" LOAM & SEED

P
B

P
B

P
B

1 PO

4 PO

3 MJ

1 MJ

2 MJ

1 UA

3 BN

3 PG

3 BN

2 UA

1 LT

3 NS

3 AC

1 AG

1 AC

2 NS

1 UA

2 AG

8 PJM

1 AR

2 UA

6" LOAM

& SEED

4" LOAM AND EROSION/

CONSERVATION MIX

12 PJM

6 PJM

6 SLP

5 PJM

4 IG

6 PJM

42 HHR

1

8

PLAZA 'A'

2

8

PLAZA 'B'

4" LOAM

& SEED

BELL TOWER

P
B

P
B

PB

(2) 1-

1

2

" BELL TOWER

CONDUIT (SEE SHEET 8)

BELL TOWER

CONTROL CABINET

PROPOSED

BENCH (TYP.)

LIGHTING LEGEND

R#

G#

ROADWAY LIGHTS

GREENWAY LIGHTS

ROADWAY LIGHTS

P# PARKING AREA LIGHTS

TREES
QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

SIZE

AR 1 Acer rubrum `October Glory` October Glory Maple 2 1/2 - 3" CAL.

AG
3 Acer saccharum `Green Mountain` TM Green Mountain Sugar Maple 2 - 2 1/2" CAL.

LT
1 Liriodendron tulipifera Tulip Tree

2 - 2 1/2" CAL.

NS 5 Nyssa sylvatica `Wildfire` Black Gum
2 - 2 1/2" CAL.

UA
6 Ulmus x `Accolade`

Accolade Elm 2 - 2 1/2" CAL.

EVERGREEN TREES QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
SIZE

PG 3 Picea glauca
White Spruce 8 - 10` HT.

PO
5 Picea omorika

Serbian Spruce 8 - 10` HT.

ORNAMENTAL TREES QTY BOTANICAL NAME
COMMON NAME SIZE

AC
4 Amelanchier canadensis Shadblow Serviceberry Multitrunk 8 - 10` HT./Multi-Stem

BN
6 Betula nigra `Duraheat` Duraheat River Birch

10 - 12` HT./Multi-Stem

MJ
6 Malus x `Jarmin`

Marilee Crabapple 2 - 2 1/2" CAL.

SHRUBS QTY BOTANICAL NAME
COMMON NAME SIZE

IG
4 Ilex glabra `Shamrock`

Shamrock Inkberry
2 - 3` HT.

PJM 37 Rhododendron x `PJM` PJM Rhododendron 2 - 2 1/2` HT.

SLP 6 Spiraea japonica `Little Princess` Little Princess Japanese Spirea 18 - 24" SPD

PERENNIALS QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
SIZE

SPACING

HHR 42 Hemerocallis x `Happy Returns` Happy Returns Daylily 1 GAL.
18" o.c.

PLANT SCHEDULE

50
0 

So
ut

hb
or

ou
gh

 D
riv

e,
 S

ui
te

 1
05

B
So

ut
h 

Po
rtl

an
d,

 M
ai

ne
 0

41
06

New England Conservation/Wildlife Mix

Botanical Name Common Name

Elymus virginicus Virginia Wild Rye

Schizachyrium scoparium Little Bluestem

Andropogon gerardii Big Bluestem

Festuca rubra Red Fescue

Sorghastrum nutans Indian Grass

Panicum virgatum Switch Grass

Chamaecrista fasciculata Partridge Pea

Desmodium canadense Showy Tick Trefoil

Asclepias tuberosa Butterfly Milkweed

Bidens frondosa Beggar Ticks

Eupatorium purpureum (Eutrochium maculatum) Purple Joe Pye Weed

Rudbeckia hirta Black Eyed Susan

Aster pilosus (Symphyotrichum pilosum) Heath (or Hairy) Aster

Solidago juncea Early Goldenrod

APPLY: 25 LBS/ACRE: 1750 sq ft/lb

The New England Conservation/Wildlife Mix shall provide a permanent cover of grasses, wildflowers, and

legumes, suitable for both good erosion control and wildlife habitat value. The mix shall be designed to be

a no maintenance seeding, and to be appropriate for cut and fill slopes, detention basin side slopes, and

disturbed areas. Mix shall be as supplied by the following, or approved equal:

New England Wetland Plants, Inc

820 West Street, Amherst, MA 01002

Phone: 413-548-8000 FAX 413-549-4000

Email: INFO@NEWP.COM Web Address: www.newp.com

gbakos
Cloud+

gbakos
Cloud+
Eliminate this controller and combine with new Dual Control Cabinet near the bell tower

gbakos
Cloud+

gbakos
Cloud+
Move to new dual use controller near bell tower

gbakos
Callout
Delete this bell tower conduit and PB run.

gbakos
Callout
Delete this bell tower conduit and PB run.

gbakos
Callout
Delete this bell tower conduit and PB run.

gbakos
Rectangle

gbakos
Callout
Approx location of proposed Dual control cabinet

gbakos
Line

gbakos
Callout
Power Pole

gbakos
Callout
Power feed conduit

gbakos
Line

gbakos
Line

gbakos
Line

gbakos
Callout
Delete 

gbakos
Line

gbakos
Callout
New Lighting Conduit 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

Subject:  Proposed amendments to the Board & Committee Appointment Process 
 
Information:  Staff is recommending the following changes to the Board & Committee Appointment Process 
 
Page 1, paragraph 3 – Incumbents will receive a letter notification from the Clerk notifying reminding them of 
the expiration of their term and letting them know they need to reapply.  
 
If an email address is provided, it is quicker and more efficient to notify applicants and incumbents via email. If 
an email address is not provided, staff would send a letter. 
 
Page 2, paragraph 2 – the proposed amendment is allowing the Clerk to notify nominees within two business 
days rather than the day following the Appointment Committee meeting. It also allows the Appointments to 
appear on the Consent Agenda instead of New Business. Any items that appear on the Consent Agenda may be 
removed and placed under New Business at the request of a Council member or a citizen. 
 
Page 2, paragraph 5 – the proposed amendment is allowing the Clerk to notify Appointees within two business 
days rather than the day following the Council meeting, and, same as Page 1, paragraph 3 (above) which gives 
the Clerk the option to notify applicants via email rather than send a letter. 
 
Page 7 – replaced the Board & Committee list with an updated list. 
 
City Budgetary Impacts:  Minor (paper, envelopes, postage, more efficient use of staff time) by removing the 
references to send a letter when notification can be sent via email instead. 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Discussion 
 
Previous Meetings and History: The last amendments made to this process were adopted in 2014. 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments: Board & Committee Appointment Process with proposed amendments. 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF AUBURN 

BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT PROCESS 

 

The Mayor shall appoint a three member committee hereinafter called the “Appointment 

Committee”.  The Appointment Committee shall review all applications to boards or committees 

assigned per attachment “Committees of the City of Auburn”; the Committees may interview 

applicants, including incumbents, for vacancies on all City boards, commissions and committees.  

 

The Appointment Committee may review term expirations and propose appointments as 

frequently as necessary.  The Clerk shall notify the various boards, commissions, and 

committees, the Mayor, the City Manager and the City Council members of the upcoming 

expirations and any current vacancies periodically, but not less than once per year.  

 

Incumbents will receive a letternotification from the Clerk notifying reminding them of the 

expiration of their term and letting them know they need to reapply.  Additionally the Clerk shall 

post on the City website a notice of vacancy for at least 30 days.  However, if a term becomes 

vacant due to a resignation, death, residency, disqualification, or other sudden vacancy, the 

committee may shorten or eliminate the 30 day posting.  The Clerk will also notify all alternate 

members so that they may apply for full membership, if interested. 

 

A notice shall be placed on the City’s website. The Clerk may create an email group of 

neighborhood group contacts, Chamber, contacts and other interested individuals to which the 

advertisement may be sent.  

 

Applications shall only be accepted during the posted period and must be postmarked no later 

than the deadline. Emails are acceptable and must be time stamped in advance of the deadline.  

Incumbents must reapply each time. All applicants are required to send a completed application 

form and it is recommended that they also send a resume and a cover letter to apply.   

 

The Clerk shall notify the staff person to the board, commission, or committee in question, so 

that he/she can also have a conversation with any incumbents to let them know their term is 

expiring. 

 

All boards, commissions, and committees will be provided with a brief description of that 

board’s duties and the qualifications for appointment will be in the header, notebooks containing 

the ordinances/by-laws pertaining to each board, commission, or committee, and a list of the 

incumbents on all boards.   

 

The Appointment Committee meetings are considered a Public Meeting. The date and time 

of the meeting will be posted on the City website at least 2 days prior to the meeting. All City 

Councilors will receive copies of the applications to review at least one week prior to the 

Appointment Committee meeting. During the Appointment Committee meetings, the Committee 

may enter into Executive Session to review applications. 

 



2 | P a g e  
 

The Appointment Committee may vote by hand or by consensus on the nominee for each 

vacancy.  If the Appointment Committee does not agree on a nominee, a vacancy may be re-

advertised or presented to the City Council.   

 

The dayWithin two business days after the nominations are completed, the Clerk shall notify 

the employees who staff the boards, commission, or committees, to let them know who is being 

nominated or that a position is being re-advertised.  Also on that day, letters shall be sent to 

thosethe Clerk shall notify applicants who are being nominated.  Nominees shall be told when 

their appointment is going to the full Council agenda. Appointments will appear under New 

Businessthe consent agenda and enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of 

these items unless a Council member or a citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda under 

new business  with possible Executive Session if needed. Nominees will be asked to attend the 

meeting.   

 

Except for legal retention purposes, resumes will not be kept for future vacancies, once 

interviews have been held. The process shall start fresh each time, ensuring that resumes are 

current and received from applicants qualified to fill the positions. 

 

The Clerk shall prepare the order for the Council meeting, noting the names, board to which 

members are being appointed and the term expiration date. At the meeting, the Mayor shall ask 

the new board members to stand and introduce themselves, once the order has passed.  

 

The next dayWithin two business days, after the Council appointments are passed, the Clerk 

shall send a letter tonotify each new member, congratulating them, advising them of the 

expiration date of their term, telling them who the staff person is and letting them know they 

must be sworn in before their first meeting.  A copy of this letterthe notification shall be sent to 

the staff person for that committee along with the new member’s resume.  

 

The website shall provide a complete list of all the board and committee members currently 

serving, date of end of term, and date of original appointment. 

 

All appointments in this policy are those subject to the approval of the City Council.  

Appointments of the Mayor as conferred in Charter are subject to this process or processes. 

 

Alternate Member 

 

An alternate member shall participate in all meetings with the same rights as a full 

member, except they shall not have the right to vote.  The right to vote shall only be conferred by 

a vote of full members present to fill an absence, temporarily vacated seat, or to replace a 

member who has removed themselves due a conflict of interest.  Alternate members shall be 

appointed to voting rights on a rotating basis, so as to preserve fairness.  The purpose of alternate 

members is to sustain a full voting board and to educate new interested persons before becoming 

a full member.  It is the intent but not mandate of the Council to promote Alternate Members to 

full membership before accepting new members to a board or committee. 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

 

Reports and Vacancies 

 

A vacancy on any appointive board, commission, or committee of the city shall exist upon the 

occurrence of any of the following events: 

 

(a) Death of a member. 

 

(b) Resignation of a member. 

 

(c) Moving by a member of the member’s place of residence from the City of Auburn. When 

a member moves from the City of Auburn, the vacancy shall occur immediately and the 

member shall not serve at any further meetings.  

 

 

(d) Failure of a member to attend more than three (3) consecutive meetings or absence from 

five (5) meetings during the preceding twelve-month period. 

 

Reporting actions and vacancies. 

 

The chairman of each board or commission of the city shall certify or cause the secretary 

of the board or commission to certify to the city council each month the actions of said board or 

commission, together with the record of absences of members. In such report, the chairman or 

secretary of each such board or commission shall notify the city council of any vacancy 

occurring on such board or commission. In the event that a vacancy occurs, the board or 

commission may, by majority vote of its membership, exclusive of the member affected, 

recommend to the city council that the attendance provision be waived for cause, in which case 

no vacancy shall exist until the city council disapproves the recommendation. 

 

Removal from Office 

 

 An official or officials who are alleged to have caused grounds for removal from office 

are subject to the “Policy for Removal of Officials Appointed to Boards, Commissions and 

Committees” approved as part of this policy. 
 

  



4 | P a g e  
 

POLICY FOR REMOVAL OF OFFICIALS APPOINTED TO BOARDS, 

COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES 

 

1. Purpose.  The purpose of this policy is to have in place a process for the removal of officials 

appointed to boards, commissions and committees 

 

2. Authority.  The City Council exercises its authority to remove officials under Title 30-A, 

section 2601 which allows the removal for cause after notice and hearing. 

 

3. Cause.  All grounds constituting cause cannot be detailed.  However, the following are 

examples of conduct which may result in removal for cause: 

 

A. More than three consecutive absences or five absences within a calendar year, 

unexcused by the Board, Commission or Committee by majority vote.  This 

subsection may not be used unless the records of the Board, Commission or 

Committee reflect the facts constituting grounds.  Nothing in this subsection shall 

be interpreted to prevent an official from requesting a leave of absence from the 

Council for unusual circumstances.  Unusual circumstances could include, but not 

be limited to, illness of the official or an immediate family member; temporary 

relocation for employment, military duty or educational reasons; and increased 

temporary child care responsibilities.  In making the decision whether or not to 

grant a leave of absence, the Council shall balance the needs of the City and the 

Board, Commission or Committee with the needs of the official. 

 

B. Inappropriate public conduct or conduct to other officials related to the office 

held.  Examples include but are not limited to verbal abuse to other officials or 

members of the public, or obstruction of meetings of the Board, Commission or 

Committee. 

 

C. Impairment by alcoholic beverages or drugs at Board, Commission or Committee 

functions. 

 

D. Indictment or conviction (1) for a Class C or higher Crime, or (2) for a Class D or 

lower crime or a civil violation, directly or indirectly affecting the office held.  

Examples of Class D or lower crimes or civil violations affecting the office held 

would be shoplifting a compact disk where the office involved the handling of 

money; or violations of a protected resource where the Board, Commission or 

Committee deals with that resource.  These provisions apply even when the 

conduct leading to the indictment or conviction has taken place outside the City of 

Auburn or State of Maine. 

 

E. Other reasons related to the good of the Committee, the City or the office held. 

 

1. Removal procedure. 

 



5 | P a g e  
 

A. Separation of roles.  While a City Councilor sitting in a removal 

proceeding may be aware of the facts and circumstances leading to 

the proceeding, the City Council recognizes that no individual 

Councilor may prejudge the proceedings.  Therefore, in a proceeding 

to remove an appointed official, the facts and circumstances shall be 

investigated by the City Manager or the City Manager’s designee 

(hereinafter “the City Manager”), rather than an individual 

Councilor. Should allegations be brought to an individual Councilor, 

which the individual Councilor believes may be cause for removal, 

the individual Councilor shall turn the facts and circumstances over 

to the City Manager, and refer further inquiries to the City Manager.  

Inquiries to other Councilors shall be turned over to the City 

Manager.  No Councilor shall participate in any removal hearing if 

that Councilor has an interest, a conflict, or is disqualified, under the 

Rules of Order and Procedure for Auburn City Council. 

 

B. Investigation. The City Manager shall investigate the allegations as 

soon as reasonably possible.  If the City Manager determines the 

allegations create probable grounds for removal, the City Manager 

shall notify the official in writing that the City Manager is 

contemplating a recommendation to the City Council that the official 

be removed, outlining the City Manager’s reasons.  The City 

Manager shall provide the official a reasonable amount of time to 

provide the official’s position on the allegations, before the City 

Manager finalizes the recommendation to the City Council. 

 

C. Hearing.  If the City Manager recommends removal, the City 

Council shall schedule a hearing on the official’s removal.  The 

hearing shall be scheduled at a time which will allow the City 

Manager and the official an adequate opportunity to prepare their 

presentations to the City Council.  At the hearing, the City Manager 

shall present the City’s case with the official’s case following.  The 

presentations may include witnesses and exhibits, including 

documents.  The City Manager and the officials shall provide each 

other a list of witnesses and exhibits at least seven days before the 

hearing date unless another time is agreed upon.  Each party shall be 

allowed to ask questions of the other party’s witnesses.  Evidence 

will be admissible if it is evidence which would be relied upon by 

persons in the conduct of serious affairs.  This means, for example, 

that hearsay evidence will not be excluded, and that the procedure 

will be conducted according to the principles of fair play rather than 

of strict rules of evidence. 

 

D. Confidentiality.  The hearing shall be conducted in open session 

unless the Council determines public discussion could reasonably be 

expected to cause damage to the official’s reputation or the official’s 



6 | P a g e  
 

right to privacy would be violated.  If the Council makes that 

determination, all related materials will be confidential until a final, 

non-appealable decision. Regardless of the Council’s decision on 

public discussion, the official may request in writing that the hearing 

be conducted in open session, and that all related materials be public. 

 

Even if the hearing is conducted in open session, it is not a public 

hearing.  Stated differently, the only persons presenting testimony or 

evidence will be those persons selected by the City Manager or official.  

The general public will not be invited to testify at the hearing. 

 

E. Decision.  After the City Council hears the evidence, it shall issue a 

written decision of those present and voting.  The written decision 

shall state the facts and conclusions upon which the City Council 

relies in making its decision.  If the written decision removes the 

official from office, the written decision shall become public as soon 

as it is a final, non-appealable, decision.  The vote on the written 

decision shall be by majority vote. 

 

5. Resignation. If the official elects to resign at any stage of this process, the process shall 

terminate, and any pending investigation or hearing under this process 

shall cease. 

  



7 | P a g e  
 

COMMITTEES & BOARDS OF THE CITY OF AUBURN 

 

Board Name 

911 

ABDC 

* Airport  - see notes 

ATRC 

Audit and Procurement 

Bike-Ped Committee 

*Board of Assessment Review 

*Cable TV Advisory  

CDBG Community Advisory  

*CDBG Loan  

Ethics Panel 

*Auburn Housing 

L-A Community Forest Program & Board 

LA Public Health 

LAEGC 

*LATC  

Library 

MMWAC 

Neighborhood Stabilization 

New Auburn Master Plan Implementation 

*Planning Board 

Railroad 

*Recreation & Special Events Advisory 

School 

*Sewerage District 

*Water District 

*Zoning Board of Appeals 

 

*Council appointed 

The Auburn-Lewiston Airport Board, one Auburn resident seat is Council appointed 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8 | P a g e  
 

COMMITTEES & BOARDS OF THE CITY OF AUBURN 

 

Board Name 

911 Committee 

Age-Friendly Community Committee 

Agriculture Committee 

Androscoggin County Budget Committee 
Androscoggin Transportation Resource Center 
(ATRC) 
Androscoggin Valley Council of Governments 
(AVCOG) 

Appointment Committee 

Auburn Business Development Corp (ABDC) 

Auburn Housing Authority 

Auburn & Lewiston Municipal Airport 

Auburn Public Library Board of Trustees 

Auburn Sewer District Board of Trustees 

Auburn Water District Board of Trustees 

Audit Committee 

Cable TV Advisory Board 

Citizen’s Advisory Committee (CAC) 

City Council 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Loan 
Committee 

Complete Streets Committee 
Conservation Commission 

• Community Forest Subcommittee 

• Parks Subcommittee 

Ethics Panel  

Lewiston-Auburn Railroad Company (LARC) 

L/A Transit Committee (LATC) 

L/A Water pollution Control Authority 

Maine Waste-to-Energy 

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 

Planning Board 

Registration Appeals Board 

Regulatory Advisory Board 

School Committee  

 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021 
 
Author:  Jill M. Eastman, Finance Director  
 

Subject:  Proposed Updated Fund Balance Policy 
 
Information:  After reviewing the City’s Fund Balance Policy, I have made a few modifications and would like to 

review them with you.  
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  No budgetary impacts. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends passage of the updated policy at the next Council meeting. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: The original policy was adopted by City Council in 2011. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:    
 

Attachments:  
Relined version of updated Fund Balance Policy 
 

 



General Fund - Fund Balance Policy (GASB 54) 
As amended on June 7, 2021 

 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Purpose of this Policy 
 
 The purpose of this policy is to establish a target level of fund balance for the general fund and 
to establish a process and criteria for the continued evaluation of that target level as conditions warrant. 
This policy shall also establish a process for reaching and maintaining the targeted level of unassigned 
fund balance, and the priority for the use of amounts in excess of the target. Finally, this policy shall 
provide a mechanism for monitoring and reporting the City’s general fund balance. This policy applies 
only to the general fund. 
 
Definitions and Classifications 
 
 Fund Balance is a term used to describe the net assets of governmental funds. It is calculated as 
the difference between the assets and liabilities reported in a government fund. 
 
 Governmental fund balance is reported in five classifications that comprise a hierarchy based 
primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for 
which amounts in those funds can be spent. The five classifications of fund balance for the General Fund 
are defined as follows. 
 

• Non-spendable – resources which cannot be spent because they are either a) not in spendable 
form or; b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted – resources with constraints placed on the use of resources which are either a) 
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors contributors, or laws 
or regulations of other governments; or b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. 

• Committed – resources which are subject to limitations the government imposes upon itself at 
its highest level of design making, and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. 
This must be set in place prior to the end of the period. 

• Assigned – resources neither restricted nor committed for which a government has a stated 
intended use as established by the City Council, or a body or official to which the City Council 
has delegated the authority to assign amounts for specific purposes. 

• Unassigned – resources which cannot be properly classified in one of the other four categories. 
The General Fund should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance 
amount. 

 
 The committed, assigned, and unassigned classifications are often referred to, in the aggregate, 
as the unrestricted fund balance. 
 
GAAP means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



General Fund - Fund Balance Policy (GASB 54) 
As amended on June 7, 2021 

 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Background and Considerations 
 
 Fund balance is intended to serve as a measure of financial resources in a governmental fund. 
The City’s management, credit rating services, and others monitor the levels of fund balance in the 
general fund as an important indicator of the City’s economic condition.  
 
 In establishing an appropriate level of fund balance the City of Auburn has considered the 
following factors: 
 

• Property tax base. The property tax is the largest revenue source of the City’s general fund. The 
City receives payments twice a year.  

• Non-property tax revenues (examples Excise Tax, State Revenue Sharing and ect). These 
resources must be considered in terms of the percentage each comprises of the total budget, as 
well as the reliability and stability of these resources. 

• Exposure to significant outlays. The City shall consider its potential exposure to significant one-
time outlays, either resulting from a disaster, immediate capital needs, state budget cuts or 
other events. 

• Debt. It is essential that the City have sufficient capacity to make its debt service payments. 
Principal and Interest payments along with the second interest payment need to be maintained 
along with future debt services as developed in the City’s capital improvement program. 

• Liquidity. An adequate level of fund balance should be maintained to ensure sufficient liquidity. 
The potential drain on the general fund resources from other funds, as well as the availability of 
resources in other funds, should be considered. 

• Government Finance Officers Association Best Practice. The GFOA has established a best practice 
that recommends,”… at a minimum, that general-purpose governments, regardless of size, 
maintain unrestricted fund balance in their general fund of no less than two  months of regular 
general fund operating revenues or regular general fund operating expenditure.” GFOA’s best 
practice also states, “…governments may deem it appropriate to exclude from consideration 
resources that have been committed or assigned to some other purpose and focus on 
unassigned fund balance rather than unrestricted fund balance.” 

 
Policy 
 
 It is a policy of the City of Auburn to maintain unrestricted (unassigned) fund balance in the 
general fund at no less than 10% and no more than 12.514% of general fund annual expenditures 
measured on a GAAP basisbudget.  In the event that the unassigned fund balance drops below this level, 
the City will develop a plan, implemented through the annual budgetary process, to bring the balance to 
the target level over a period of no more than three (3) years. Amounts in excess of the target shall be 
brought to the City Council in the form of a Council Order before use for City Council approval. 
 
 The Finance Director, in accordance with GAAP, shall report fund balance in the appropriate 
classifications and make the appropriate disclosures in the City’s financial statements. Unless classified 
as restricted or committed, the following balances shall be classified as assigned per GAAP or as 
required by this policy. 
 

Formatted: Font: Bold



General Fund - Fund Balance Policy (GASB 54) 
As amended on June 7, 2021 

 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 Encumbrances. Amounts encumbered at year-end by purchase order or another means shall be 
classified as assigned. 
 
 Budget Appropriations. Amounts appropriated in the annual budget resolve, or in any 
supplemental budget resolves, for expenditures in the following fiscal year shall be classified as 
assigned. 
 
 Capital Budget.  Amounts designated in the first year of the City’s capital improvement program 
(CIP) as either appropriations or advances to other funds shall be classified as assigned. 
 
 Self Insurance. Amounts designated in the City’s self insurance shall be classified as assigned. 
 
 Compensated Absences. These are not typically recorded as liabilities in the governmental funds, 
unless they are paid out immediately following the close of the fiscal year. However, the obligation for 
compensated absences can be significant. Therefore, the City will assign the amount equal to the 
estimated amount required at year end to pay the compensated absence obligation for those who meet 
the eligibility criteria for payment and can be expected to terminate employment with the City in the 
following fiscal year. This amount shall exclude any amount recorded as a liability.  
 
Policy Administration 
 
 Annually the Finance Director shall report the City’s fund balance and the classification of the 
various components in accordance with GAAP and this policy. 
 
 The Finance Director shall annually review this policy and the considerations used in establishing 
the unassigned fund balance target.  The Finance Director shall report whether changes in those 
considerations or additional considerations have been identified that would change the recommended 
level of unassigned fund balance. 
 
 Should the City fall below the target level, the Finance Director shall prepare a plan to restore 
the unassigned fund balance to the target level within three years.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 



General Fund - Fund Balance Policy (GASB 54) 
As amended on June 7, 2021 

 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

General Fund - Fund Balance Policy 
 

 
Fund Balance as % Expenditure – General Fund for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30 

  2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 
Unrestricted       
  General Fund Balance  $6,938,376 $9,600,796 $10,573,583 $10,743,593 $11,337,473 
Total Expenditures  $66,098,944 $65,726,910 $67,915,898 $69,458,976 $66,934,714 
       
As a % of Expenditures  10.49% 14.60% 15.56% 15.46% 16.93% 
       
Unassigned       
  General Fund Balance  $5,088,428 $7,898,295 $8,783,174 $8,405,631 $9,599,911 
Total Expenditures  $66,098,944 $65,726,910 $67,915,898 $69,458,976 $66,934,714 
       
As a % of Expenditures  7.69% 12.01% 12.93% 12.10% 14.34% 
 
 
 
 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Unrestricted

General Fund Balance - Unassigned 5,897,974$          7,113,261$    7,780,670$    8,065,076$    9,862,432$    
General Fund Balance - Assigned 2,084,993$          1,750,310$    1,863,605$    2,034,264$    1,653,481$    
General Fund Balance - Committed -$                           

Total Unrestricted 7,982,967$          8,863,571$    9,644,275$    10,099,340$ 11,515,913$ 
Total Expenditures-General Fund 78,511,644$        80,021,761$ 83,791,073$ 87,441,799$ 90,866,305$ 

As a % of Expenditures 10.17% 11.08% 11.51% 11.55% 12.67%

Unassigned
General Fund Balance - Unassigned 5,897,974$          7,113,261$    7,780,670$    8,065,076$    9,862,432$    

Total Expenditures-General Fund 78,511,644$        80,021,761$ 83,791,073$ 87,441,799$ 90,866,305$ 

As a % of Expenditures 7.51% 8.89% 9.29% 9.22% 10.85%

Fund Balance as % Expenditure - General Fund for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30



General Fund - Fund Balance Policy (GASB 54) 
As amended on June 7, 2021 

 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Unrestricted

General Fund Balance - Unassigned 5,897,974$        7,113,261$    7,780,670$    8,065,076$    9,862,432$    
General Fund Balance - Assigned 2,084,993$        1,750,310$    1,863,605$    2,034,264$    1,653,481$    
General Fund Balance - Committed -$                         -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total Unrestricted 7,982,967$        8,863,571$    9,644,275$    10,099,340$ 11,515,913$ 
Total Budget 77,552,581$     80,530,771$ 83,475,908$ 86,718,950$ 90,192,648$ 

As a % of Budget 10.29% 11.01% 11.55% 11.65% 12.77%

Unassigned
General Fund Balance - Unassigned 5,897,974$        7,113,261$    7,780,670$    8,065,076$    9,862,432$    

Total Budget 77,552,581$     80,530,771$ 83,475,908$ 86,718,950$ 90,192,648$ 

As a % of Budget 7.61% 8.83% 9.32% 9.30% 10.93%

Fund Balance as % Budget - General Fund for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021  
 
Author:  Eric Cousens, Director of Planning and Permitting and Megan Norwood, City Planner 
 

Subject:  Comprehensive Plan Updates: Initial recommendations from the Comprehensive Plan Committee-
Recreation/Open Space 
 

Information:  From August to December of 2020 the City Council, with input from the Planning Board, 
solicited volunteers, formed a Comprehensive Plan Committee, and directed staff to work with the 
Committee to consider 10 areas of the Comprehensive Plan for updates.   
 
This is step 1 in a public process to consider amendments to the plan.  The Comprehensive Plan does 
not change zoning, but it does set policy that guides decisions in the future and is used by City staff, 
Planning Board, residents, investors, and policy makers to set goals and direction for future zoning 
changes, short/long term investments and capital planning.  At the last meeting, Staff presented 
current draft recommendations on three topics, Transportation, Future Land Use and 
Recreation/Open Space. 
 

Staff is looking for direction from the Council and to forward the Recreation section to the Planning 
Board to start the formal Public Hearing and adoption process. 
 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None Currently, but the plan will guide future investment proposals to the Council 
related to recreation.   
  
Staff Recommended Action: Review public feedback, proposed changes, provide feedback and send to 
Planning Board as a consent item at this meeting.    

 
Previous Meetings and History: August 17, 2020, September 21, 202 and December 21, 2020, April 12, 2021 
and May 17, 2021 Council Meetings and Comprehensive Plan Committee Meetings to form draft of 
recommendations and Community Conversations on May 4, 6 and 11th, 2021.   

 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:     
 

Attachments: Draft Comprehensive Plan Recreation Section. 
 

 



 

 

E. RECREATION (AND OPEN SPACE) 

POLICIES 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of the Recreation Policies section is to 

identify recreational and open space assets within the 

City of Auburn; and to set forth goals, objectives, and 

strategies for the preservation and development of 

facilities to meet the future needs of the community. 

VALUE STATEMENT 

Auburn is a community that values accessible, diverse recreational opportunities for 

 everyone. 

VISION 

Auburn maintains and enhances parks and recreational facilities to serve 

current and growing populations. By promoting tourism, the City welcomes 

visitors while balancing recreation with natural resource protection. The 

City emphasizes the cost-effective planning and management of facilities as 

well as communication about recreational opportunities; and the 

development of connections between parks, including neighborhoods, 

Complete Streets, sports fields, open spaces, and recreational centers. The 

City promotes a collaborative approach focused on local facilities and 

resources      by how well its resources are situated in a regional context. 

The City places a priority on developing equitable recreational access to 

open spaces and public waterways including boat launches, parks, cultural 

facilities and trails. Auburn will collaborate with nonprofit organizations, 

landowners, and recreational clubs to maintain safe access to rural open 

space for a variety of users including pedestrians/hikers, skiers, 

snowmobilers, boaters and cyclists.  

Recreation Goal: 

Goal E.1:  Provide for adequate 
recreation facilities and open 
space in Auburn. 



 

 

POLICIES 

E.1 RECREATION AND CULTURE 

Goal E.1:  Provide for exceptional recreation facilities and open space in 

Auburn. 

Objective E.1.1:  

Ensure that there are exceptional recreational facilities to meet the needs of residents 

throughout Auburn to include welcoming and attracting visitors from away. 

 

Strategies to achieve this objective: 

 

Strategy E.1.1.a: 

Support ongoing funding that leverages the annual budget process, including State and 

Federal regulatory and funding programs and private/non-profit funding options that 

support and enhance the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) to improve and maintain 

existing park and recreation facilities. 

Strategy E.1.1.b: 

Develop ways to maximize and maintain strong community partnerships and recreation 

facility availability.  

Objective E.1.2:  

Improve access to, and awareness of, recreational amenities along the Androscoggin 

and Little Androscoggin Rivers. 

Strategies to achieve this objective:  

 

Strategy E.1.2.a: 

Develop a riverfront access campaign to inform residents and visitors about the 

recreational opportunities available along both rivers and to collect feedback about 

recreation. 

Strategy E.1.2.b: 

Support the connection of local recreational facilities along the Androscoggin River with 

riverfront facilities in other communities, such as the Androscoggin Riverlands and 

Lewiston. 



 

 

Strategy E.1.2.c: 

Identify and develop new land and water access points that create connectivity with the 

Androscoggin and Little Androscoggin Rivers and surrounding recreational 

opportunities. Utilize public and private resources to mitigate financial, recreational, 

and cultural impacts. 

Strategy E.1.2.d: 

Improve existing recreational river access points through better trail and park 

maintenance, increased signage, adequate lighting, promotion and programming. 

Strategy E.1.2.f:  

Promote defunct dam removal for improved access, recreation, habitat, and fishing 

opportunities.   

Objective E.1.3:  

Support continued designated public access and recreational use in and around Lake 

Auburn, Taylor Pond, Gulf Island Pond, Royal River, Basin Pond, Androscoggin and 

Little Androscoggin Rivers. 

 

Strategies to achieve this objective:  

 

Strategy E.1.3.a (See Also Strategy A.1.1.b and A.1.1.c):  

Support recreational efforts of the Lewiston & Auburn Pollution Control (LAWPC), 

including the linking of Lake Auburn trails to regional trail networks while addressing 

the lost MaineDOT rest area by creation of an essential trailhead, with picnic tables and 

general sightseeing opportunities of lake Auburn. Specifically, redeveloping the 

Southern Link Trail (SLT) gateway from the picnic area to west Auburn to link Lost 

Valley recreational areas.  

Strategy E.1.3.b:  

Evaluate the feasibility of creating a public boat launch on Taylor Pond. 

 

Objective E.1.4:  

Protect and expand open space and rural recreational activities within Auburn. 

 

Strategies to achieve this objective:  

 

Strategy E.1.4.a: 

Review Recreation Area/Open Space Standards for residential developments. 



 

 

Strategy E.1.4.b 

Coordinate efforts among the City, public and non-profits for private-public recreation 

and open space to identify a network of trails and open space, along with consistent 

standards to ensure recreational users have continued access to land, ecologically 

sensitive land is protected, while impacted landowners are respected. 

Strategy E.1.4.c: 

Create a Complete Streets network from the downtown to Lake Auburn. Work with 

neighboring municipalities to create an interconnected system of routes for non-

vehicular commuters. 

Develop programs to connect urban residents with rural recreational opportunities, 

including the expansion of transit service between the downtown and areas such as Mt. 

Apatite and Lake Auburn. 

Strategy E.1.4.d: 

Continue to support rural landowner participation in the Farmland Open Space Tree 

Growth and the Volunteering Municipal Farm Support Program as a means to preserve 

open space and public access. 

Strategy E.1.4.e:  

Create a central website where people can find out where to recreate within the City. 

Tie-in existing public and private resources from all recreation user groups. 

Objective E.1.5:  

Ensure that community trails and water-bodies are well maintained, safe, and 

accessible and minimize environmental impact throughout Auburn. 

 

Strategies to achieve this objective:  

 

Strategy E.1.5.a: 

Actively support the efforts of outdoor recreational clubs and organizations and educate 

residents on ways to support organizations that maintain trails, open space and boating 

access.  

Develop trail “share” programs that maintain trails year-round by integrating different 

user groups by season, neighborhoods throughout Auburn. 

Strategy E.1.5.b: 



 

 

Develop a trail maintenance program to ensure that all City‐owned trails are safe and 

accessible year round. 

Work with and support the Cities three snowmobile clubs so they can continue their 100 

plus miles of trail maintenance on public and private lands. Continue to return 

snowmobile registration monies to the snowmobile clubs to provide needed funding for 

bridge replacements, trail maintenance, signage and grooming while performing and 

promoting in-kind volunteerism for critical state match through grants. 

Strategy E.1.5.c:  

Develop a safety program including public awareness campaigns for trails and water-

bodies to educate users of safety protocol and provide a brief history of the resource. 

Strategy E.1.5.d:  

Support the upgrading of the Androscoggin River from a Class C to a Class B Water 

Quality Standard. 

Strategy E.1.5.e:  

Explore the idea of obtaining conservation and access easements to land to promote 

recreation and enhance connectivity.  

Strategy E.1.5.f:  

Develop a program to convert winter trails to year-round uses to include hiking, ATV 

and horseback where feasible. 

Strategy E.1.5.g:  

Create and integrate existing trail maps to create a trail app for all trail users.  

Strategy E.1.5.h:  

Consider adding multiuse trails in the City where economically feasible with a focus on 

equity.  

Objective E.1.6:  

Provide a wide range of cultural and arts amenities.   

 

Strategies to achieve this objective:  

 

Strategy E.1.6.a: 

Continue to collaborate with Lewiston to expand and promote cultural venues within 



 

 

the region. 

Strategy E.1.6.b: 

Develop marketing materials to expand public awareness of local cultural amenities, 

such as offerings at the Great Falls Community Center, Museum LA, LA Arts, Public 

Theater and at other museums throughout Auburn. 

Strategy E.1.6.c: 

Solicit input from the community for potential reuse or redevelopment of the Great Falls 

School site. 

Strategy E.1.6.d:  

Support funding investments in public art displays, cement the shared use of publically 

owned facilities.  

Strategy E.1.6.e:  

Use art as a mechanism to promote recreation and open spaces to gain attention from a 

broader stakeholder group for a deeper appreciation for the outdoors, recreation, 

natural resources, and open spaces. 

Objective E.1.7:  

Focus on a regional approach to new programs and facilities that are unique and 

would draw people in from the outside to come to the City of Auburn.  

E.2 SPORT TOURISM 

Goal E.2: Increase sport tourism in the City of Auburn as a legitimate way 

to boost the number of visitors, visitor spending, and evaluate the 

potential of being a significant driver. The City recognizes the health and 

strength of the sport tourism industry, making investments in sport 

tourism projects and initiatives to increase economic impact, promote the 

city, and encourage tourism activities. Sport tourism has been identified 

as a key initiative for ensuring a sustainable, prosperous, and diverse 

local economy. 

Objective E.2.1:  



 

 

Build on the community’s capacity to deliver well-managed and sustainable events 

that maximize the community and economic benefits of sport tourism. 

Strategies to achieve this objective:  

 

Strategy E.2.1.a:  

Develop strong support from the municipal and private leadership.  

Strategy E.2.1.b:  

Develop a multi-partner approach to encourage lasting sport tourism capacity. 

Strategy E.2.1.c:  

Create incentives for sports events to come to the City of Auburn. 

Strategy E.2.1.d:  

Create a brand to promote the community. 

Strategy E.2.1.e:  

Create anchor tenants to support the facility and its uses.  

Strategy E.2.1.f:  

Provide arts and entertainment tourism to support facilities and uses.   

 

Objective E.2.2:  

Assess and/or acquire land to further support the growth of Auburn’s sport tourism 

infrastructure. 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

 City of Auburn   
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021  
 
Author:  Derek Boulanger 
 

Subject:  Festival Plaza Revitalization 
 
Information:  Festival Plaza was constructed 20 years ago and several elements from the initial project have failed or 

need repair.  Some of these repairs involve underground water/sewer infrastructure and would require excavation 
and significant site work.  Prior to investing in costly repairs, City staff contacted Woodard and Curran to develop 
high level concept plans and options to revitalize the Plaza.  Along with a reduction in maintenance and utility costs, 
the intent of these changes is to increase usability and improve future programing and events in the downtown.  

  
 

City Budgetary Impacts:  To be determined based on the scope of the project. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Discussion 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  
FY 2021 CIP: $25,000 approved for the removal of the fountains and design for future repairs/ improvements. 
 
FY 2022 CIP:  $100,000 approved for the initial phase of the repairs/improvements. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 

Attachments:  
 
Festival Plaza Concept Plans   
Opinion of Probable Costs 





















COMMITMENT & INTEGRITY 
DRIVE RESULTS 
 

41 Hutchins Drive 
Portland, Maine 04102 
www.woodardcurran.com 

T 800.426.4262 
T 207.774.2112 
F 207.774.6635 

 

   

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Derek Boulanger, Facilities Manager/ Purchasing Agent, City of Auburn 

FROM: Megan McDevitt, PE and Daniel Windsor 

DATE: April 29, 2021 

RE: Festival Plaza Conceptual Plans - Opinion of Probable Project Cost 

  
This memorandum documents the results of Woodard & Curran’s work completed in accordance with the 
Work Order between the City of Auburn and Woodard & Curran, executed on February 26, 2021. 
Specifically, this memorandum summarizes the estimated project costs for each of three concepts 
developed to revitalize Festival Plaza, a 24-year-old park located in downtown Auburn, Maine.  
 
Woodard & Curran’s professional estimator prepared project cost estimates based on the conceptual 
plans dated April 2021. Cost estimates includes material, labor, testing and equipment costs, along with 
cost breakdowns for contractor general conditions, overhead, and profit. It also includes estimated project 
soft costs such as design, permitting, and construction engineering services (i.e., testing, inspection, 
administration). All items in the estimate were developed based on current industry prices or recent trends 
and constitute a snapshot in time for what costs may be in April 2021 dollars (ENR Construction Cost 
Index = 11849.31) and were then escalated 3.5% assuming 2022 construction.   
 
The following table summarizes the range of Probable Project Cost for each of the three conceptual plans. 
A range of estimated costs is provided as a contingency to account for unresolved conditions due to the 
conceptual level of design and possible unforeseen conditions during future construction. 
 

Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Project Cost 
 

Conceptual Plan  Opinion of Probable Project Cost 

River Room Concept $725,000 - $890,000 

Community Room Concept $1,230,000 - $1,540,000 

Riverside Hill Concept $1,490,000 - $1,860,000 

  
 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021   Order: 64-06072021    
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject:  Appointing Wardens and Ward Clerks for the June 8, 2021 Election. 
 
Information:   
 
Warden and Ward Clerk Appointments are made every two years. Appointments were made in February of 
2020 for the 2020-2022 term, however, there have been several vacancies again for this election. The City Clerk 
has nominated the individuals below to fill the Warden and Ward Clerk vacancies for the June 8, 2021 Election. 
 
Christine Sirois – Warden 
Miles Smith – Warden 
Wanda Brown – Ward Clerk 
Robert Hayes – Ward Clerk 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Appointments are made every two years or when there is a vacancy. 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:   
 
Attachments: Order 64-06072021 

 



 

 

Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One 

Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Katherine E. Boss, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 64-06072021 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby appoints the following to serve as Wardens & Ward 
Clerks for the June 8, 2021 Election. 
 
Christine Sirois – Warden 
Miles Smith – Warden 
Wanda Brown – Ward Clerk 
Robert Hayes – Ward Clerk 
 

 
 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021   Order: 65-06072021 
 
Author:  Eric Cousens, Director of Planning and Permitting and Megan Norwood, City Planner 
 

Subject:  Comprehensive Plan Updates: Initial recommendations from the Comprehensive Plan Committee-
Recreation/Open Space 
 

Information:  From August to December of 2020 the City Council, with input from the Planning Board, 
solicited volunteers, formed a Comprehensive Plan Committee, and directed staff to work with the 
Committee to consider 10 areas of the Comprehensive Plan for updates.   
 
This is step 1 in a public process to consider amendments to the plan.  The Comprehensive Plan does 
not change zoning, but it does set policy that guides decisions in the future and is used by City staff, 
Planning Board, residents, investors, and policy makers to set goals and direction for future zoning 
changes, short/long term investments and capital planning.  At the last meeting, Staff presented 
current draft recommendations on three topics, Transportation, Future Land Use and 
Recreation/Open Space. 
 

Staff is looking for direction from the Council and to forward the Recreation section to the Planning 
Board to start the formal Public Hearing and adoption process. 
 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None Currently, but the plan will guide future investment proposals to the Council 
related to recreation.   
  
Staff Recommended Action: Review public feedback, proposed changes, provide feedback and send to 
Planning Board as a consent item at this meeting.    

 
Previous Meetings and History: August 17, 2020, September 21, 202 and December 21, 2020, April 12, 2021 
and May 17, 2021 Council Meetings and Comprehensive Plan Committee Meetings to form draft of 
recommendations and Community Conversations on May 4, 6 and 11th, 2021.   

 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:     
 

Attachments: Draft Comprehensive Plan Recreation Section. 
 

 



 

 

Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One 

Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Katherine E. Boss, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 65-06072021 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council consider the recommended edits to the 

Recreation/Open Space Chapter from the Comprehensive Plan Subcommittee and forward the 

revised chapter to the Planning Board to start the Public Hearing and adoption process.  



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021   Order: 66-060720021 
 
Author:  Eric Cousens, Director of Planning and Permitting 
 

Subject:  Auto sales in the General Business II Zoning District 
 

Information:  The Primary difference between the General Business (GB) and General Business II 
Minot Avenue (GBII) Districts is that auto sales are not allowed in the GBII.  This was intentional and 
was the driver of creating a second GBII district that was different than Center Street and our Mall 
area.  Many property owners have asked to sell automobiles on Minot Avenue either as a primary use 
or accessory to their repair or auto related businesses and have been denied due to the ordinance.  
We are asking the Council to consider sending this issue to the Planning Board to consider: 
1. Is the second district still necessary or could the GB and GBII districts be merged to allow auto 
sales and reduce districts? 
2. If the district still makes sense, could we allow some minor secondary auto sales at other 
businesses (maybe limited 4-8 display spaces)? 
3. Should we retain the auto sales prohibition as is? 

 

City Budgetary Impacts:  None Currently 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Discuss, provide feedback and send to Planning Board as a consent item at this 
meeting.    
 
 
Previous Meetings and History: None   

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:     
 

Attachments: Order sending request to Planning Board for a recommendation. 
 
 

 



 

 

Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One 

Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Katherine E. Boss, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 66-06072021 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the Auburn City Council hereby initiates a formal request that the Planning 
Board consider allowing auto sales in the GBII zoning District and specifically address the 
following questions as part of a recommendation to the Council:  
 

1. Is the second district still necessary or could the GB and GBII districts be merged to 
allow auto sales and reduce districts?  

 

2. If the district still makes sense, could we allow some minor secondary auto sales at 
other businesses (maybe limited 4-8 display spaces)?  
 

3.  Should we retain the auto sales prohibition as is?  
 



 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021   Order: 67-06072021 
 

Author: Glen E. Holmes, Director of Business & Community Development 
 

Subject: Annual Reports to Maine State Housing  
 
Information:  The City is required in accordance with the Certificate of Approval issued by the  Maine State 

Housing Authority to provide them with anannual report for each of the Affordable Housing Districts and 
associated TIF’s. 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Approve the Order as presented  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:     
 

Attachments: The Order and the Reports 

 
 
 

 



030910 

Annual Report for Tax Year April 1, 2020 – March 31, 2021 
Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing District 

Submission Deadline of April 30, 2021 
 
 
Municipality:   City of Auburn _________________________________________________ 
 
Municipal official submitting this report: 
 

  Phillip L. Crowell ________________________________________________________ 
Printed name 

 
__________________________________________   06/07/2021  
Signature Date 

 
Title:   City Manager _________________________________________ 
Mailing address:   60 Court Street, Auburn ME 04210 ________________________ 
Phone number:   207-333-6601 __________________________________________ 
Email address:   pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov _____________________________ 

 
Name of Affordable Housing Development District: 
 

  48 Hampshite Street _____________________________________________________ 
 
Date that the municipal legislative body approved this report: In submitting this report, the legislative 
body of the municipality or its authorized representative certifies that the public purpose of the affordable housing 
district is being met and that the required housing affordability and other conditions of approval, including limitations 
on uses of tax increment revenues for approved development project costs, set forth in the Certificate of Approval issued 
by Maine State Housing Authority for the District and the related Affordable Housing Development Program are 
being maintained. 
 

  June, 7  , 202021 
 
Status of affordable housing within the District: “Affordable” means for households earning no more 
than 120% area median income. If affordable housing development is in process or complete, we would very much 
appreciate a photo of the housing, supplied electronically to mmartin@mainehousing.org.  
 

Type of housing unit 
 

# of Existing 
affordable 

units 

# of Existing 
market units 

# of Planned 
affordable 

units 

# of Planned 
market units 

Rental (family) 42 11 0 0 

Rental (senior) 0 0 0 0 

Owned home/condo 0 0 0 0 

 



030910 

Please list property sales within the District. [NOTE:  Impact on affordability is not required by 
the statute for this item and in any event would be captured in the chart above.] 

 
N/A 

 
Please describe any changes from what was described in the approved Development 
Program for the District, such as changes to the type, scope or timing of development 
within the District. If the Development Program and Certificate of Approval for the District 
allow alternative uses of funds, please list how funds are being used in practice. 
 

N/A 



030910 

Annual Report for Tax Year April 1, 2020 – March 31, 2021 
Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing District 

Submission Deadline of April 30, 2021 
 
 
Municipality:   City of Auburn _________________________________________________ 
 
Municipal official submitting this report: 
 

  Phillip L. Crowell ________________________________________________________ 
Printed name 

 
__________________________________________   06/07/2021  
Signature Date 

 
Title:   City Manager _________________________________________ 
Mailing address:   60 Court Street, Auburn ME 04210 ________________________ 
Phone number:   207-333-6601 __________________________________________ 
Email address:   pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov _____________________________ 

 
Name of Affordable Housing Development District: 
 

  62 Spring Street _________________________________________________________ 
 
Date that the municipal legislative body approved this report: In submitting this report, the legislative 
body of the municipality or its authorized representative certifies that the public purpose of the affordable housing 
district is being met and that the required housing affordability and other conditions of approval, including limitations 
on uses of tax increment revenues for approved development project costs, set forth in the Certificate of Approval issued 
by Maine State Housing Authority for the District and the related Affordable Housing Development Program are 
being maintained. 
 

  June, 7  , 202021 
 
Status of affordable housing within the District: “Affordable” means for households earning no more 
than 120% area median income. If affordable housing development is in process or complete, we would very much 
appreciate a photo of the housing, supplied electronically to mmartin@mainehousing.org.  
 

Type of housing unit 
 

# of Existing 
affordable 

units 

# of Existing 
market units 

# of Planned 
affordable 

units 

# of Planned 
market units 

Rental (family) 33 8 0 0 

Rental (senior) 0 0 0 0 

Owned home/condo 0 0 0 0 

 



030910 

Please list property sales within the District. [NOTE:  Impact on affordability is not required by 
the statute for this item and in any event would be captured in the chart above.] 

 
N/A 

 
Please describe any changes from what was described in the approved Development 
Program for the District, such as changes to the type, scope or timing of development 
within the District. If the Development Program and Certificate of Approval for the District 
allow alternative uses of funds, please list how funds are being used in practice. 
 

N/A 



030910 

Annual Report for Tax Year April 1, 2020 – March 31, 2021 
Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing District 

Submission Deadline of April 30, 2021 
 
 
Municipality:   City of Auburn _________________________________________________ 
 
Municipal official submitting this report: 
 

  Phillip L. Crowell ________________________________________________________ 
Printed name 

 
__________________________________________   06/07/2021  
Signature Date 

 
Title:   City Manager _________________________________________ 
Mailing address:   60 Court Street, Auburn ME 04210 ________________________ 
Phone number:   207-333-6601 __________________________________________ 
Email address:   pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov _____________________________ 

 
Name of Affordable Housing Development District: 
 

  Webster School _________________________________________________________ 
 
Date that the municipal legislative body approved this report: In submitting this report, the legislative 
body of the municipality or its authorized representative certifies that the public purpose of the affordable housing 
district is being met and that the required housing affordability and other conditions of approval, including limitations 
on uses of tax increment revenues for approved development project costs, set forth in the Certificate of Approval issued 
by Maine State Housing Authority for the District and the related Affordable Housing Development Program are 
being maintained. 
 

  June, 7  , 202021 
 
Status of affordable housing within the District: “Affordable” means for households earning no more 
than 120% area median income. If affordable housing development is in process or complete, we would very much 
appreciate a photo of the housing, supplied electronically to mmartin@mainehousing.org.  
 

Type of housing unit 
 

# of Existing 
affordable 

units 

# of Existing 
market units 

# of Planned 
affordable 

units 

# of Planned 
market units 

Rental (family) 28 0 0 0 

Rental (senior) 0 0 0 0 

Owned home/condo 0 0 0 0 

 



030910 

Please list property sales within the District. [NOTE:  Impact on affordability is not required by 
the statute for this item and in any event would be captured in the chart above.] 

 
N/A 

 
Please describe any changes from what was described in the approved Development 
Program for the District, such as changes to the type, scope or timing of development 
within the District. If the Development Program and Certificate of Approval for the District 
allow alternative uses of funds, please list how funds are being used in practice. 
 

N/A 



030910 

Annual Report for Tax Year April 1, 2020 – March 31, 2021 
Affordable Housing Tax Increment Financing District 

Submission Deadline of April 30, 2021 
 
 
Municipality:   City of Auburn _________________________________________________ 
 
Municipal official submitting this report: 
 

  Phillip L. Crowell ________________________________________________________ 
Printed name 

 
__________________________________________   06/07/2021  
Signature Date 

 
Title:   City Manager _________________________________________ 
Mailing address:   60 Court Street, Auburn ME 04210 ________________________ 
Phone number:   207-333-6601 __________________________________________ 
Email address:   pcrowell@auburnmaine.gov _____________________________ 

 
Name of Affordable Housing Development District: 
 

  477 Minot Avenue _______________________________________________________ 
 
Date that the municipal legislative body approved this report: In submitting this report, the legislative 
body of the municipality or its authorized representative certifies that the public purpose of the affordable housing 
district is being met and that the required housing affordability and other conditions of approval, including limitations 
on uses of tax increment revenues for approved development project costs, set forth in the Certificate of Approval issued 
by Maine State Housing Authority for the District and the related Affordable Housing Development Program are 
being maintained. 
 

  June, 7  , 202021 
 
Status of affordable housing within the District: “Affordable” means for households earning no more 
than 120% area median income. If affordable housing development is in process or complete, we would very much 
appreciate a photo of the housing, supplied electronically to mmartin@mainehousing.org.  
 

Type of housing unit 
 

# of Existing 
affordable 

units 

# of Existing 
market units 

# of Planned 
affordable 

units 

# of Planned 
market units 

Rental (family) 36 0 0 0 

Rental (senior) 0 0 0 0 

Owned home/condo 0 0 0 0 

 



030910 

Please list property sales within the District. [NOTE:  Impact on affordability is not required by 
the statute for this item and in any event would be captured in the chart above.] 

 
N/A 

 
Please describe any changes from what was described in the approved Development 
Program for the District, such as changes to the type, scope or timing of development 
within the District. If the Development Program and Certificate of Approval for the District 
allow alternative uses of funds, please list how funds are being used in practice. 
 

N/A 



 

 

Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One 

Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Katherine E. Boss, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 67-06072021 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the Annual Reports to the Maine State 

Housing Authority for Tax Year April 1, 2020 – March 31, 2021, Affordable Housing Tax 

Increment Financing Districts, #16 (Webster School), #20 (62 Spring Street), #21 (477 Minot 

Ave) and #22 (48 Hampshire Street), as provided by Business and Community Development 

Staff.   













 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date: June 7, 2021 
 
Author:  Sabrina Best, Recreation Director  
 

Subject:  Summer Activities Update  
 
Information:  Staff will provide an update on events and programs planned for 2021.    
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None  
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Update and discussion 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: None 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:      
 

Attachments:  
Summer 2021 Presentation  
 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021  
 
Author:  Chief Robert Chase 
 

Subject:  Vaccination Initiative Update 
 
Information:   
 
Current State of Maine Covid Vaccination Dashboard Statistics 

State of Maine – 53.51% /52.64 % Vaccination rate 

Androscoggin County – 46.95% /44.77 % Vaccination rate 

68% vaccination rate in Auburn 

Auburn Fire Department COVID-19 Vaccination Initiative 

• The Auburn Fire Department COVID-19 vaccination team was established in December 2020 

after Maine EMS requested the department’s assistance in vaccinating first responders 

throughout Androscoggin County. 19 Members of the Auburn Fire Department have since 

completed specialized training in the administration of COVID-19 vaccine. Through the efforts 

of these team members, the Auburn Fire Department achieved the ability to administer each of 

the three, COVID-19 vaccines currently approved for use in the United States. 

 

• After administering vaccine to first responders throughout Androscoggin County, the Auburn 

Fire Department vaccination team has continued to adapt to evolving vaccination guidance, and 

since vaccinated hundreds of citizens in Auburn and surrounding communities. To date, the 

Auburn Fire Department has administered 900 doses of COVID-19 vaccine to approximately 

625 individual recipients.  

 

• The Auburn Fire Department vaccination team has conducted 27 vaccine clinics since 

December 2020. In an effort to reach a broad spectrum of the community’s population, clinics 

have been held in numerous locations, including: 

o Norway Savings Bank Arena 

o Auburn Fire Department 

o Poland Fire Department 

o Auburn Senior Center 

o Auburn Housing Authority properties, including: 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

▪ Barker Mill Arms, Roak Block, Vincent Square Apartments, Lake Auburn 

Towne House, Auburn Esplanade, Webster School Apartments, 62 Spring Street 

o Auburn Middle School 

o Edward Little High School 

 

• In addition to the efforts outlined above, the Auburn Fire Department partnered with 

SeniorsPlus/Meals on Wheels, Androscoggin Home Health and Hospice, and United 

Ambulance to identify home-bound citizens in need of vaccination. Through these efforts, the 

Auburn Fire Department has delivered approximately 30 vaccinations to home-bound citizens 

that would have been otherwise unable to receive the vaccine.  

 

• Through partnership with Maine CDC, Maine Public Health Nursing, United Ambulance, 

Healthy Androscoggin, Central Maine Medical Center and Primerica, the Auburn Fire 

Department vaccination team assisted with vaccinating the New Mainer population in two 

Mosques in Lewiston. More than 100 total doses of vaccine were administered in these efforts.  

 

• Mass Vaccination Site (Auburn Mall):  The City of Auburn partnered with Central Maine 

Healthcare and DHHS to establish a mass vaccination site at the Auburn Mall.  The clinic 

opened on March 17, and at its peak was administering 1,400 doses a day.  To date, the Auburn 

Mall site has administered over 35,000 doses.   

 

• Moving forward:   

 

o Demand for vaccination has dropped considerably over the past weeks  

o Auburn Mall site is working on a plan to scale down the operation, while still providing 

some access 

o Auburn Fire has no future clinics scheduled, but we will remain open if new 

opportunities present themselves. 

o All partners are planning for how to vaccinate children under 12-years-old - should that 

authorization be granted 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  N/A 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: N/A 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:     
 

Attachments: None 
 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021                  Order: 57-05172021 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject:  Liquor License & Special Amusement Permit request for the 1800 Club 
 
Information:  The owners of The 1800 Club, LLC. located at 34 Court Street have applied for a Liquor License 
and Special Amusement Permit. Police, Fire, Finance and Code have granted approval. 
 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 
 
Staff Recommended Action: Motion to approve the liquor license and special amusement permit. 
 
 
Previous Meetings and History: a Public hearing and vote to postpone this item until tonight’s meeting was 
held during the 5/17/2021 Council meeting. 
 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.    Signature:                     
 
Attachments:  

• Application 

• Public Notice 

• Order  

 





























CITY OF AUBURN 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

 

A public hearing will be held on Monday, May 17, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon as 

possible thereafter, in the Council Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street, to consider 

a Liquor License and Special Amusement Permit for: 

The 1800 Club, LLC 

34 Court Street, Auburn, Maine  

 

All interested persons may appear or provide written comment to show cause, if any they 

may have, why this license should not be granted. Written comments may be submitted 

via email to: comments@auburnmaine.gov 

 

 

 

  

 

Publication Sun Journal   Number of dates 3 

First Run Date 05/11/2021   Last Run Date 05/13/2021 
          

Publication Online Upsell SUN   Number of dates 3 

First Run Date 05/11/2021   Last Run Date 05/13/2021 
          

Order Number 0266042   Order Price $151.80 

Sales Rep. Venise Wilding   PO No. Susan Clements-Dallaire 

Account S38471   Payment Type Invoice 

 

mailto:comments@auburnmaine.gov


 

 

Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One 

Brian S. Carrier, Ward Four 

Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 

Stephen G. Milks, Ward Three 

Katherine E. Boss, At Large 

Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., City Manager 

Timothy B. MacLeod, Ward Two 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

City Council Order 

ORDER 57-05172021 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the liquor license and Special Amusement 

Permit for The 1800 Club, LLC., located at 34 Court Street.  

 

 



 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021  
 

Author: Glen E. Holmes, Director of Business & Community Development 
 

Subject: Public Hearing for CDBG/Home annual action plan 
 
Information:  We must hold two Public Hearings to receive comments on our proposed CDBG & HOME 

program annual action plan. We had one on May 17; however, as we made the plan publicly available on 
the same day, we understand holding an additional Public Hearing is in order. We will also be holding 
another on June 21, accompanied by an overview of the plan. 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: None 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Receive Public Comment  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Staff presented the action plan at the meeting held on 5/17/21 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  
 

Attachments: None 

 
 
 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
City of Auburn 

City Council Information Sheet 
 

 

 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  June 7, 2021 
 
Subject:  Executive Session 
 
Information: Economic Development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C). 
 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 
session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 
until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 
must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 
scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 
only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  
Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 
A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 
disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation 
or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  
(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 
(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 
conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of 
whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 
session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or 
interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 
prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  
 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the 
body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open 
to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  
 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 
litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of 
professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, 
municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  
 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those 
records is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 
consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an 
examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  
 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 
subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending 
enforcement matter.  


	0  Agenda 06-07-2021
	1  Info sheet Public Art-ROSE
	1a  Artwork French Beauty Diagram
	1a  French Beauty Location in Anniversary Park
	2  Info Sheet Appointment Process
	2a  Auburn Appointment Process 2021 Proposed changes
	3  Info sheet - fund balance
	3a  FY2011 Fund Balance Policy updated June 2021 working document
	4  Info Sheet Comprehensive Plan Update 6.7.21
	4a  FINALDRAFT_Rec_Chapter_Going to PBCC
	E. Recreation (and Open Space) Policies

	5  Info sheet Festival Plaza
	5a  Festival Plaza_Community Room.4.29.2021
	2.1
	2.2

	5b  Festival Plaza_Riverside Hill.4.29.2021
	3.1
	3.2

	5c  Festival Plaza_River Room.4.29.2021
	1.1
	1.2

	5d  2021.04.29 Festival Plaza Opinion of Probable Project Cost Memorandum
	6  Info Sheet Wardens-Ward Clerks
	6  Order 64-06072021 Warden and Ward Clerk appt
	7  Info Sheet Comprehensive Plan Update 6.7.21
	7  Order 65-06072021 RecOpenSpace Chapter
	8  Info Sheet GB Auto sale 6.7.21
	8a  Order 66-06072021 GBII to PB
	9  Info sheet approve annual reports cdbg
	9a  2021 48 Hampshire St Annual Report
	9b  2021 62 Spring St Annual Report
	9c  2021 Webster School Annual Report
	9d  2021 477 Minot Ave Annual Report
	9e  Order 67-06072021Annual Reports
	10  Minutes 5-17-2021
	11  Summer Events 2021 Update - Info Sheet
	11a  Info Sheet 2021 vaccination update
	12  Info Sheet   1800 Club
	12a  1800 Club Applications
	12b  Liquor License 1800 Club-public notice
	12c  Order 57-05172021 1800 Club Liquor-SpAmus
	13  2021 CDBG and HOME Public Hearing
	14  Executive Session Info Sheet 2021



